
 

Page 1 of 5 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
MINUTES 

of the meeting of the 
LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE OF THE 
NEVADA COMMISSION ON ETHICS 

 

 
The Commission on Ethics held a public meeting on 

Wednesday, November 12, 2025, at 9:00 a.m. 
at the following location: 

 
State Bar of Nevada 

9456 Double R Blvd., Suite B 
Reno, NV 89521 

 
These minutes constitute a summary of the above proceedings of the Nevada 

Commission on Ethics Legislative Committee. A recording of the meeting is available for 
public inspection at the Commission’s office and the Commission's YouTube channel. 
 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call. 
 
Chair Kim Wallin, CPA, CMA, CFM, appeared in person in Reno and called the 

meeting to order at 9:01 a.m. Vice Chair Terry Reynolds and Commissioner John Miller 
also appeared in person. Present for Commission staff in Reno were Executive Director 
Ross E. Armstrong, Esq., Commission Counsel Elizabeth J. Bassett, Esq., Senior Legal 
Researcher Caitlin Pagni, and Executive Assistant Elvira Saldaña. Outreach and 
Education Officer Sam Harvey appeared via Zoom video conference.  

 
2. Public Comment. 

 
There was no public comment. 
 

3. Approval of Minutes of the October 15, 2025, Legislative Committee Meeting. 
 
Chair Wallin noted Vice Chair Reynolds was not present at the October 15, 2025 

committee meeting, therefore would not participate on the item. Chair Wallin asked if 
there were any additions or corrections. 

 
There were no recommendations. 
 
Commissioner Miller moved to approve the October 15, 2025, Legislative 

Committee Meeting Minutes. Chair Wallin seconded the motion. The motion was put to 
a vote and carried unanimously. 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCdhOUhz64ah8DeqN7NDx4qA


 

Page 2 of 5 
 

 
4. Review and discussion of materials provided by staff from other states, and 

potential approval of direction to staff for drafting priorities and legislative 
approach. 
 
Chair Wallin introduced the item and asked Executive Director Armstrong for his 

presentation. 
 
Executive Director Armstrong noted he provided a memo containing information 

from other states. He also provided an overview of topics requested by the committee at 
the October meeting, which included: abuse of power/unwarranted harm language, 
disclosure requirements, confidentiality statutes, previous attempt to define “appearance 
of impropriety,” and gifts. Also included in the memo is a link to a report on the strength 
of Ethics Commissions and considerations for each topic for the committee members to 
review. 

 
Chair Wallin stated that following questions and comments from committee 

members, she would like to discuss and narrow it down to two items to address. 
 
Commissioner Miller commented that Oregon’s approach to gifts seems to be 

logical and asked if gifts have been a major item consistently over the years. 
 
Executive Director Armstrong responded that the most frequent question related 

to gifts the Commission receives through advisory opinions is regarding educational 
conferences. The Commission has encountered few instances involving gifts related to 
sports events.  

 
Commission Counsel Bassett commented that sports tickets is a newer issue. 
 
Executive Director Armstrong stated numerous questions relating to gifts are 

asked during training. 
 
Commission Counsel Bassett stated gifts are a big topic. 
 
Commissioner Miller stated that abuse of power is a great topic, however he is 

concerned if the Commission could handle the potential volume of complaints with the 
current structure. 

 
Chair Wallin commented she does not know if they would see an increase in 

complaints.  
 
Executive Director Armstrong stated numerous complaints have been received 

about bad government that are outside of the Commission’s scope. The Commission 
may see an increase in investigations. 

 
Commissioner Miller referenced Georgia law, relating to complaints being made 

internally within a government agency. 
 



 

Page 3 of 5 
 

Commissioner Reynolds commented that two items of importance are providing 
a framework for review on issues and a broader definition of gifts. 

 
Executive Director Armstrong stated as the committee works on the definition of 

gifts, intent should be looked at.  
 
Chair Wallin suggested considering a dollar limit on gifts. 
 
Commissioner Reynolds stated ceremonial duties of elected officials needs to be 

better defined. 
 
Chair Wallin asked Commissioner Miller if he agrees with including ceremonial 

duties. 
 
 Commissioner Miller stated he agreed. 
 
 Chair Wallin suggested meeting with the Secretary of State to address 
disclosure. 
 
 Executive Director Armstrong stated he is considering the development of a list 
of ethical standards and would begin working on it. 
 
 Commissioner Reynolds commented that it should be mandatory that every 
public officer be required to take ethics training within 6 months of their appointment. 
 
 Chair Wallin stated she agreed. 

 Outreach and Education Officer Harvey asked for clarification on the process 
when a proposed legislative change may have budgetary implications. 

 Executive Director Armstrong responded after the bill is drafted, state and local 
governments get the opportunity to provide input on how much it will cost to comply with 
the law. 
 
 Commissioner Reynolds stated that online training for regular employees would 
be good. Training for public officials should be more than online training and would have 
a fiscal impact which should be looked at. 
 
 Commissioner Miller inquired about the current duration to complete training and 
whether there are different levels of training available. 
 
 Outreach and Education Officer Harvey responded there is an ethics basics 
course which takes 1 ½ hours- 2 hours to complete. The training is for all public officers 
and employees. A candidates and campaigns resource training is also available; 
however, training tailored to specific roles or positions is currently not offered. 
 
 Executive Director Armstrong noted when training is conducted in person, staff 
recommends the duration to be 90 minutes to allow sufficient time for training and 
questions. 



 

Page 4 of 5 
 

 Chair Wallin recommended the mandatory training be online as more resources 
are gathered. 
 
 Executive Director Armstrong suggested starting with a statutory requirement for 
only public officers. 
 
 Chair Wallin referenced what was noted in the memo regarding acknowledgment 
forms and expressed concern about the inability to not being able to obtain a list of 
public officers from government agencies. 
 
 Executive Director Armstrong noted the Secretary of State’s Office receives a list 
of individuals who are required to complete the financial disclosure statement. He 
suggested that a potential starting point would be to request the list from the Secretary 
of State’s Office. 
 
 Commissioner Miller inquired about the definition of “public officer” and if the 
financial disclosure statement is only required to be reported when the individual makes 
over $8,000.00. 
 
 Executive Director Armstrong responded by explaining the definition under Ethics 
Law which is slightly different. 

 Chair Wallin stated that the Secretary of State may be able to inform candidates 
of the additional requirements at the time they file to run for office. 

 Executive Director Armstrong stated that after the election, training will be 
conducted, which will include information on acknowledgments. 

 Commissioner Reynolds commented that establishing standards for disclosures 
and ethics training at the time of the initial appointment is the most effective approach. 
 
 Chair Wallin inquired if there has been thought on improving confidentiality for 
requesters that no longer work for the agency. 
 
 Executive Director Armstrong stated some language can be drafted. Fear of 
economic harm is a common concern. 
 
 Chair Wallin asked committee members for their thoughts. 
 
 Commissioner Reynolds agreed with economic harm.  
 
 Chair Wallin stated the committee will consider gifts, ceremonial duties, and 
mandatory training for public officers, and look into confidentiality. 
 
 Commissioner Reynolds asked for clarification on the bill draft request process 
once the Commission approves it. 
 
 Executive Director Armstrong responded by explaining the process. 
 



 

Page 5 of 5 
 

5. Commissioner Comments on matters including, without limitation, identification of 
future agenda items, upcoming meeting dates and meeting procedures. 
 
There were no Commissioner comments. 
 

6. Public Comment. 
 
There was no public comment. 

 
7. Adjournment. 

 
Commissioner Miller made a motion to adjourn the public meeting. 

Commissioner Reynolds seconded the motion. The Motion was put to a vote and 
carried unanimously. 

 
The meeting adjourned at 9:54 a.m. 
 

Minutes prepared by:    Minutes approved January 21, 2026 
 

/s/ Elvira Saldaña   /s/ Kim Wallin_____________   
Elvira Saldaña  Kim Wallin, CPA, CMA, CFM 
Executive Assistant      Chair 
 
/s/ Ross Armstrong  /s/ Terry Reynolds_____________ ______ 
Ross Armstrong, Esq.   Terry Reynolds  
Executive Director   Vice Chair 


